
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of a public meeting of the 
 

Joint Standards Committee 
 
To: Councillors Runciman (Chair),  Cannon, Hayes, Kramm, 

and Mercer  (CYC Members) 
Councillor Perrett (Vice-Chair)  (Parish Councillor) 
Mr Laverick and Ms Davies (Independent Persons) 
 

Date: Wednesday, 9 November 2016 
 

Time: 4.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Rowntree Room (GO62) - West Offices 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 Members are asked to declare: 

 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests 

 any prejudicial interests or 

 any disclosable pecuniary interests  
 
which they might have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Joint 

Standards Committee held on 3 August 2016. 
 

3. Minutes of Sub-Committees   (Pages 5 - 20) 
 To approve and sign the minutes from the following sub-

committee meeting: 

 Hearings Sub-Committee meeting of 11 October 2016  
 

 



 

4. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak, regarding an item on the agenda 
or an issue within the remit of the Joint Standards Committee, 
may do so.  The deadline for registering is 5:00 pm on Tuesday 
8 November 2016.  To register to speak please contact the 
Democracy Officer for the meeting on the details at the foot of the 
agenda.  
 
Filming or Recording Meetings 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are 
at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_f
or_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_201
60809.pdf 
 

5. Monitoring Report on Complaints Received   (Pages 21 - 22) 
 This report updates the committee on current complaints. 

 
6. Yorkshire Local Councils Associations    
 Sheena Spence, Chief Officer Yorkshire Local Councils 

Associations, has been invited to attend the meeting to provide 
details of the Association’s work in supporting parish councils to 
maintain good governance, and the training it offers to parish 
councillors. 
 

7. Planning Panels   (Pages 23 - 32) 
 This report presents Members with information about the 

Planning Panels who act as consultees to the planning 
applications in the non-parished central part of the Council’s 
area. 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

8. Review of Work Plan   (Pages 33 - 34) 
 Members are asked to give consideration to the committee’s 

work plan. 
 

9. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair decides is urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Name:  Jayne Carr 
Contact Details: 
Telephone – (01904) 552030 
Email – jayne.carr@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 

 

mailto:jayne.carr@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Joint Standards Committee 

Date 3 August 2016 

Present 
 
 
In attendance 

Councillors Perrett (Vice-Chair in the Chair), 
Cannon, Hayes, Kramm and Mercer 
 
Mr Laverick – Independent Person 

Apologies Councillors Runciman and Waudby 
Ms Davies - Independent Person 

 
1. Appointment of Chair  

 
Resolved: That Councillor Runciman be appointed as Chair of 

the Joint Standards Committee for the municipal 
year. 

 
 

2. Appointment of Vice-Chair  
 
Resolved: That Councillor Perrett be appointed as Vice-Chair 

of the Joint Standards Committee for the municipal 
year. 

 
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on the agenda.  None were declared. 
 
 

4. Minutes  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint 

Standards Committee held on 24 February 2016 be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



5. Minutes of Sub-Committees  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the Assessments Sub-

Committee meetings of 15 June 2016 and 12 July 
2016 be approved and signed as a correct record. 

 
 

6. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

7. Review of Complaints for the last Municipal Year  
 
Members considered a report which gave details of the 
standards complaints received during the previous municipal 
year.   
 
Members noted that the number of complaints was similar to the 
previous year.  Although no hearings had taken place during the 
previous municipal year, it would be necessary for two cases to 
be considered by the Hearings Sub-Committee in 
September/October 2016. 
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the Committee continues to make an 

effective contribution to ethical standards within the 
City Council. 

 
 

8. Monitoring Report on Complaints Received  
 
Members considered a report which provided an update on 
current business as regards complaints.  Referring to paragraph 
2 of the report, the Monitoring Officer stated that since the report 
had been published, a fifth complaint had been received. 
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the committee is aware of current 

levels of activity. 
 
 

Page 2



9. Meeting of North Yorkshire and York Standards 
Committees Chairs and Monitoring Officers  
 
The Monitoring Officer gave a verbal report on a recent meeting 
of North Yorkshire and York Standards Committees Chairs and 
Monitoring Officers.  He stated that the meeting had been very 
useful and it was proposed to invite the Independent Persons to 
future meetings. The items that had been discussed had 
included: 

 Possibilities in respect of joint working. 

 Sanctions available when breaches of the Parish 
Councillors’ Codes of Conduct had occurred. 

 Parish Council governance issues and the role of the 
Local Councils Association in supporting parish councils. 

 
Resolved: That the report on the meeting of the North 

Yorkshire and York Standards Committees Chairs 
and Monitoring Officers be noted. 

 
Reason: To update the committee on the discussions that  

had taken place and to provide an opportunity for 
input on possibilities for future joint meetings. 

 
 

10. Review of Work Plan  
 
Members gave consideration to the committee’s work plan and 
were asked to suggest items for inclusion on the agendas for 
the municipal year. 
 
Members agreed that future meetings of the committee would 
commence at 4.00pm. 
 
Resolved: That the work plan be approved subject to the 

following1:  

 Meeting of 14 September 2016 to be cancelled 

 Planning Panels Report - agenda item for 
meeting in November 2016 

 Chief Officer of the Yorkshire Local Councils 
Association to be invited to attend the meeting 
in November 2016 to provide details of the 
Association’s work in supporting parish 
councils to maintain good governance and the 
training it offers to parish councillors. 

Page 3



 Members serving on outside bodies – agenda 
item for meeting of 1 February 2017 

 
Reason: To ensure that the committee has a planned 

programme of work in place. 
 
Action Required  
1. Update work plan and invite representative of YLCA   
 
 

 
JC  

 
 
 
 
Councillor Runciman, Chair 
[The meeting started at 3.00 pm and finished at 3.40 pm]. 

Page 4



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Joint Standards Committee Hearings Sub-
Committee 

Date 11 October 2016 

Present Councillors Cannon, Perrett and Hayes 

In attendance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr Laverick – Independent Person 
Mr Docherty – Monitoring Officer 
Mr and Mrs Harrison – Complainants 
Councillor Marquis – Chair of Strensall with 
Towthorpe Parish Council 
Councillor Chambers – Strensall with Towthorpe 
Parish Councillor 
Ms Nunn – Clerk to Strensall with Towthorpe 
Parish Council 
 

 
1. Declarations of Interest  

 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in 
respect of business on the agenda.  None were declared. 
 
 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
Members gave consideration as to whether the public and press 
should be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
annexes 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of agenda item 3 on the 
grounds that they contain information relating to individuals and 
which are likely to reveal the identity of individuals.   
 
Members took into consideration the views that had been put 
forward by the complainants and the subject Members. 
 
Resolved: (i) That the report and annexes be made 
   publically available on the Council’s website. 
 

(ii) That the hearing be held in public but the 
committee’s deliberations be held in private. 

 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



3. Complaint against Members of Strensall with Towthorpe 
Parish Council  
 
Consideration was given to a complaint brought by Graham and 
Mandy Harrison against twelve current and one former member 
of Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council.  The complaint 
related to the behaviour of the following Parish Councillors when 
dealing with Mr and Mrs Harrison’s application for permission to 
have services cross land which the Parish Council leases from 
City of York Council: 
 Councillor Keith Marquis (Chair of the Parish Council) 
 Councillor Dennis Baxter 
 Councillor Duncan Hill 
 Councillor Tony Fisher 
 Councillor Chris Chambers 
 Councillor John Chapman 
 Councillor Lawrence Mattinson 
 Councillor Kevin Ogilvy 
 Councillor Tracey Flannery 
 Councillor Geoffrey Harvey-Walker 
 Councillor Judy Smith 
 Councillor Ralph Plant 
 Former Councillor Cath Edwards 
 
The matter had been referred to the Hearings Sub-Committee 
for determination following an investigation. 
 
Introductions were carried and the procedure for the hearing 
was explained.   
 
Determining factual disputes 
 
The Panel confirmed that they had read the investigator’s report 
and the written submissions from the complainants and the 
Parish Councillors. 
 
The Panel noted that some concerns had been raised by the 
subject members regarding the investigating officer’s report but 
that other facts were agreed by both parties.   
 
The Panel gave consideration to the following allegations of 
breaches of the Code of Conduct: 
 

Page 6



(i) Use of the words “profit through deception” in a letter from 
the Chairman of the Parish Council to Hague and Dixon 
Solicitors 

 
(ii) Councillor Plant failing to declare an interest in Mr and Mrs 

Harrison’s matters at the meeting on 11 August 2015 
 

(iii) Bias and no lawful reason to refuse request, evidenced by 
comments made at the Parish Council meeting on 13 
October 2015 in relation to a similar request for services 
made by Transcore in respect of land known as 
Sevenoaks. 
 

(iv) Bias shown in a letter of 9 September 2015 from the 
Parish Council to Mr and Mrs Harrison. 

 
The Panel asked questions of and heard representations from 
the parties. 
 
[The meeting was adjourned at 11.10am and reconvened at 
11.40am]. 
 
Following the adjournment the Panel asked further questions of 
the parties before adjourning to consider their decision. 
 
 [The Parish Councillors and Clerk to the Parish Council 
withdrew from the meeting at 12.25pm] 
 
Panel’s Findings 

 
Having considered the written documentation and the verbal 
representations made at the meeting, the Panel  

 
Resolved: 
 
(i) That the failure of Councillor Plant to declare an interest at 

the meeting on 11 August 2015 was a breach of the Code 
of Conduct.   

 
Reason: The decision might reasonably be regarded as 

affecting Councillor Plant’s well-being as it 
related to the granting of access for services 
on a development on the street where he 
lived. The Panel noted that Councillor Plant 
had accepted that he had failed to declare an 

Page 7



interest.  The Panel did not regard the interest 
as “prejudicial” under the Council’s Code of 
Conduct.  The Panel also noted that Councillor 
Plant did not speak on the item.  

 
(ii) That the wording “profit through deception” in the letter of 

11 August 2015 was a breach of the Code of Conduct by 
Councillors Marquis, Plant, Baxter, Hill, Fisher, Mattinson, 
Ogilvy and Smith. 

 
Reason: A reasonable person would find such a 

comment seriously disrespectful.  A serious 
allegation of this nature requires justification 
by clear evidence which had not been 
produced and the sending of this letter to a 
third party could and has improperly conferred 
a disadvantage to Mr and Mrs Harrison. 

 
(iii) That, in respect of the letter of 9 September 2015, the 

Committee did not consider that the letter itself merited 
serious criticism.  The Panel did, however, note that part 
of the letter had caused Mrs Harrison particular upset.  
The Parish Council should therefore reflect on whether it 
wished to acknowledge and express some regret for the 
inadvertent upset that had been caused. 
 
Reason: In recognition of the upset that the letter had 

caused to Mr and Mrs Harrison. 
 
(iv) That, in respect of the allegation that there had been bias 

and no lawful reason to refuse the request, the Panel 
believed that the decisions at the three Parish Council 
meetings had been based on their animus towards Mr and 
Mrs Harrison and had improperly conferred a 
disadvantage on them which was in breach of the Code of 
Conduct: 

 
Councillors Marquis, Plant, Chapman, Chambers, Harvey-
Walker, Baxter, Smith, Flannery, and former Councillor 
Edwards were in breach on 9 June. 
 
Councillors Marquis, Plant, Baxter, Hill, Fisher, Mattinson, 
Ogilvy and Smith were in breach on 11 August. 
 

Page 8



Councillors Marquis, Plant, Baxter, Hill, Fisher, Chambers, 
Chapman, Mattinson, Ogilvy and Flannery were in breach 
on 9 September. 
 
Reasons: The Panel were not persuaded that the 
request had been refused on proper grounds. 

 
[The complainants, the Parish Councillors and the Clerk to the 
Parish Council rejoined the meeting at 12.55pm] 

 
The Parish Councillors and Clerk to the Parish Council were 
informed of the Panel’s decisions.  They were invited to return to 
the meeting at 2.00pm to make representations regarding 
sanctions.   
 
[The meeting was adjourned at 1.10pm and reconvened at 
2.00pm] 

 
Determining Sanctions 
 
The parties were informed of the sanctions that were available 
to the Panel and invited to make representations as to what 
sanctions they believed to be appropriate. It was noted that the 
Panel’s findings would be reported to each member of the 
Parish Council, the Clerk to the Parish Council and to the 
complainants.   

 
The parties made representations.  Councillor Chambers 
referred to a complaint that he had lodged about the 
investigation. 
 
The parties left allowing the Panel to deliberate. 

 
[The complainants, the Parish Councillors and the Clerk to the 
Parish Council withdrew from the meeting at 2.35pm] 

 
The Panel recorded their view that all parties had been offered 
sufficient opportunity to present their case. 
   
The Panel gave consideration to the sanctions to be imposed in 
response to the breaches of the Code of Conduct. 

 
Resolved: (i) That, in respect of Councillor Plant’s failure to 

declare an interest at the meeting on 11 
August 2015, no formal sanction be applied.  

Page 9



The committee did not consider this to be the 
most serious of breaches.  The Panel did, 
however, recommend that Councillors be 
reminded to take care when dealing with 
issues relating to near neighbours. 

 
  (ii) That, in respect of the Panel’s findings that  

Councillors have treated Mr and Mrs Harrison 
with disrespect and have improperly conferred 
a disadvantage on them, each Councillor 
concerned be formally censured. 

 
  (iii) That a copy of the Panel’s decision notice be 
    appended to the minutes of the meeting. 
 

(iv)   That the Panel was pleased to note some 
acknowledgement from the Parish 
representatives that this matter had not been 
handled well and recorded their view that the 
Parish Council may wish to consider issuing 
an apology. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Councillor Perrett, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.20 am and finished at 2.45 pm]. 

Page 10



 

 

City Of York Council 

Standards Sub Committee 

11th October 2016 

 

 

DECISION NOTICE 

IN ATTENDANCE: 

Members of Sub Committee:  

Cllr. C. Perrett (Parish Member and Chair) 

Cllr. J. Hayes 

Cllr. M. Cannon 

Advisers to the Sub Committee 

Mr. D. Laverick – Independent person 

Mr. A. Docherty – Monitoring Officer 

Ms. J. Carr – Democracy Officer 

Complainants 

Mrs. M. Harrison 

Mr. G. Harrison 

Parish Council representatives 

Councillor Keith Marquis – Chair of the Parish Council 

Councillor Chris Chambers 

Mrs. Susan Nunn – Clerk to the Parish Council 

 

 

Page 1 Minute Annex Page 11



 

 

1. Background 

 

1.1. The Sub Committee was constituted in accordance with 

procedures approved by the City of York Council’s Joint Standards 

Committee to consider complaints from Mr. and Mrs. Harrison in 

relation to the conduct of members and one former member of the 

Strensall with Towthorpe Parish Council. 

1.2. The Sub Committee had the benefit of a report from Rachel 

McKevitt (a solicitor who had independently investigated the 

complaints) and  also written representations  from  the  parties.  

Mr. and Mrs. Harrison attended the hearing. Councillors Marquis 

and Chambers along with Mrs. Susan Nunn also attended as 

representatives of the Parish Council. Other Members of the 

Council chose not to attend, as is their right.  We are satisfied that 

all parties to this complaint have had sufficient opportunity to state 

their case. 

2. History to the Complaint 

2.1. There is a reasonably long history to this complaint which is set out 

in the papers we have read and was discussed at the hearing.  We 

would summarise the key background facts as follows. 

2.2. Mr. and Mrs. Harrison own the property in Strensall in which they 

live.  Between that property and the highway there is a strip of land 

owned by the City of York Council but which has been leased to 

the Parish Council since 1996.  

2.3. In 2007 the Harrisons obtained permission from the City of York 

Council to construct a vehicle crossing over the land.  As the land 

was the subject of a long lease to the Parish Council, their 

approval was also required but it was not obtained.  There was a 

difference of views as to why that might have been. Mrs. Nunn told 

us that she thought the Harrisons had misinterpreted the 

permission they received from the City Council.  The view of Mr. 

and Mrs. Harrison, as set out in correspondence they submitted 

with the complaint, is that they tried to obtain the relevant 

permissions and they and others were not aware of the Parish 

Page 2Page 12



 

 

Council’s interest.  It is not necessary for us to reach a view on 

how it came to be that the necessary consent was not obtained but 

we note that there appears to be no suggestion of any bad faith on 

the part of Mr. and Mrs. Harrison.   

2.4. The access way then began to be constructed. This led to a long 

dispute with the Parish Council. This dispute was resolved in 

December 2011 when the Parish Council agreed to grant an 

easement for pedestrian and vehicular access across the leased 

land.  

2.5. For reasons which it was unnecessary for us to explore,  it took 

two years for the formal legal documents to be completed. They 

were finally completed in August 2013. 

2.6. In December 2013 the Harrisons submitted an application for 

outline planning permission for a dwelling in their garden.  Access 

would be obtained through the new access way. Planning 

permission for a dwelling was granted in April 2014. 

2.7.  Subsequently solicitors acting for the proposed purchasers of the 

building plot sought agreement from the Parish Council for the 

running of services across the new access way to service the 

proposed dwelling. The Parish Council refused that request at their 

meeting on 11th August 2015. 

3. The Standards complaint  

3.1 Mr. and Mrs. Harrison raise a number of issues in their complaint. 

We have identified four key areas largely in line with those 

identified in the investigator’s report. 

3.2 Councillor Plant’s alleged failure to declare an interest  

 Mr and Mrs Harrison complained that Cllr. Plant was a signatory to 

the lease between City of York Council and the Parish Council.  

We confirm that this did not create an interest which he would have 

needed to declare. They also complained that he failed to declare 

an interest at the Parish Council meeting on 11th August  2015.  

We have been told that Cllr. Plant lives on the same street and 

opposite,  or almost opposite,  the Harrisons. 

Page 3Page 13



 

 

3.2 Cllr. Plant has said that he does not know the Harrisons and did 

not speak at the meeting in relation to the item affecting their 

property. He did vote on the matter but that did not affect the result 

as the decision was unanimous. On other occasions Cllr. Plant has 

declared an interest in matters relating to the Harrisons’ property. 

3.3 Cllr. Plant was unable to attend the hearing but he made written 

submissions to the Standards Sub Committee and confirms that he 

accepts that he should have declared an interest at the meeting on 

11th August 2015. 

3.4 The Parish Council representatives who attended the hearing 

expressed an opinion that Cllr. Plant did not have an interest to 

declare. 

3.5  The Parish Council’s code of conduct requires interest to be 

declared in a number of circumstances but of specific relevance to 

this case is paragraph 1(d) which can be summarised as saying 

that a member has a personal interest in business where a 

decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded 

as affecting  the Councillor’s well being or financial position  to a 

greater extent than the majority of other inhabitants of the area. 

3.6 When a Councillor has a personal interest in business being 

discussed the Council’s code says that this interest must be 

declared. 

3.7 The investigating officer says in her report: 

 “A decision such as granting access for services on a development 

on land on the street where Councillor Plant lives could, in my 

view, affect Councillor Plant’s well-being and as such I find that 

Councillor Plant’s failure to declare an interest is a breach of the 

Code of Conduct.”   

3.8  We agree with that statement of the Investigating Officer. We do 

not, however, consider this to be the most serious of breaches. We 

have seen no evidence to suggest that the interest would have 

been regarded as “prejudicial” under the Council’s code.   We 

accept that Cllr. Plant did not speak on the item (although the 

Council’s code would have allowed him speak and vote after 

Page 4Page 14



 

 

declaring his interest). We note that Cllr. Plant has declared an 

interest on other occasions. 

3.9 In those circumstances no sanction is required but we would 

remind Councillors to take care when dealing with issues relating 

to near neighbours. 

4. Letter of the 11th August 2016 

4.1 Following the meeting of the 11th August (when the minutes record 

a letter was approved for signature by the Chairman) a letter was 

sent to the solicitors acting for a proposed purchaser of the 

Harrison's Property. It says that the Parish Council: 

 “remains adamant that, if this were agreed, the vendors would 

profit through deception” 

4.       A subsequent letter of the 9th September 2015 says that “the 

views expressed in the (earlier) letter were those of the entire 

Parish Council”. 

4.3 To allege that someone is guilty of attempting to profit through 

deception is a very serious matter and we asked the Parish 

representatives for their explanation as to why those words were 

used. 

4.4 We were told that a number of draft letters had been prepared 

reflecting different possible outcomes and the Parish Council 

approved the particular version to be sent out. 

4.5 Although the Parish Council’s representatives stated that the letter 

might have been badly worded and breached the code of conduct 

the Parish Council was still of the view that deception had taken 

place. They said that during a meeting in 2011 Mr. and Mrs. 

Harrison had denied that the second access way was to enable a 

house to be built on the land. They said this happened twice. The 

view of the Parish Council’s representatives was that this was 

deception. 

4.6   The Harrisons were asked about when they had decided to put in 

the application. They indicated that they decided to try to create a 

Page 5Page 15



 

 

building plot only after they had obtained the deed of grant. They 

said that, had they wished to do this before that time, then they 

would have asked for a right of way for services alongside the 

pedestrian and vehicle right of way. They pointed out that 

discussions over the access way had been going on for a very 

long time. They also described their changed family circumstances 

which they said prompted them to decide to try to create and sell a 

building plot. 

4.7 The Harrisons were asked about the relatively short time period 

between the deed of grant being finalised and the planning 

application being put in. Planning applications often take time to 

prepare and it was suggested to the Harrisons that this might 

indicate that, at least by August 2013, they had some idea that 

they were intending to create a building plot. The Harrisons denied 

this pointing out that an outline planning application requires 

limited detail and saying that the plans were drawn up by a friend. 

4.8 In our view a reasonable person would regard the use of the words 

“profit through deception” as seriously disrespectful.  It would 

require clear evidence before any such comment could be justified.  

The evidence does not justify it. We further take the view that 

putting this comment in a letter to a third party has improperly 

conferred a disadvantage on the Harrisons. We therefore find 

Councillors Marquis, Plant, Baxter, Hill, Fisher, Mattinson, Ogilvy 

and Smith to be in breach of the code of conduct. 

5. Letter of the 9th September 2015 

5.1 Mr. and Mrs. Harrison’s complaint centres on the wording of this 

letter. Our view is that the letter itself does not merit serious 

criticism.  It is obvious though that part of the letter has caused 

Mrs. Harrison particular upset and Mr. and Mrs. Harrison raised 

this with us specifically at the hearing. 

5.2 While we find that the letter itself does not breach the code of 

conduct the Parish Council may wish to reflect on whether it 

wishes to acknowledge and express some regret for the 

inadvertent upset that has been caused. 

Page 6Page 16



 

 

6. Bias and no lawful reason to refuse the request 

6.1 The final paragraphs though of the letter of 9th September 2015 do 

concern us.  They say: 

 “The Parish Council, with the support of the City of York Council, 

are not prepared to permit any Deed of Easement to allow you to 

profit from the erection of a new property, accessed in this way. 

The Parish Council feel that you misled them in order to achieve 

your wish to profit from providing a building plot made accessible 

by the second structure. 

This is the stance taken by the Parish Council who now consider 

this matter is closed”. 

6.2 The decision to refuse the Harrisons’ request had been  made at a 

meeting on 9th June 2015, confirmed on the 11th August and 

further confirmed on the 9th September. We were not provided with 

any evidence that the City Council’s position on the deed  was 

linked to any profit that might arise to the Harrisons. 

6.3 Cllr. Marquis told us that the refusal of permission was designed to 

protect the green belt. The Harrisons’ house is not in the land 

treated as green belt in Strensall but is close to it. We were told 

that the Parish Council was concerned about the precedent effect 

this would have. We had some difficulties with this. 

 The effect on the green belt is not mentioned in either the 

letter of the 11th August or that of the 9th September. If this 

were the true reason for refusal then it is difficult to see how 

the letters meet the principles underpinning the code of 

conduct including those of openness or honesty. 

 The Parish Council objected to the outline planning 

application but not on the grounds of any impact on the 

green belt. Cllr. Marquis said that because the Harrison’s 

house was not in the green belt this would not have been a 

valid planning objection. However, it seemed to us that if the 

“precedent” argument had validity, it must do so as a 

planning argument. 

Page 7Page 17



 

 

 At their meeting on 13th October 2015 the Parish Council 

approved a request from Transcore to put services across 

the leased land although this has not progressed because of 

a City Council objection. The minutes record: “the parish 

council viewed each request as a separate item and this 

would in no way set a precedent for any other property”. Cllr. 

Chambers, who chaired that meeting, was unable to help us 

understand why the Transcore request would not set a 

precedent but the Harrisons’ would.  

6.4  In our view the decisions at the three Parish Council meetings 

were based on their animus towards the Harrisons and improperly 

conferred a disadvantage on them in breach of the code of 

conduct.  

  Councillors Marquis, Plant, Chapman, Chambers, Harvey-Walker, 

Baxter, Smith, Flannery, and former Councillor Edwards were in 

breach on the 9th June. 

Councillors Marquis, Plant, Baxter, Hill, Fisher, Mattinson, Ogilvy 

and Smith were in breach on the 11th August. 

 Councillors Marquis, Plant, Baxter, Hill, Fisher, Chambers, 

Chapman, Mattinson, Ogilvy and Flannery were in breach on the 

9th September. 

7. Sanctions 

7.1 As previously indicated no formal sanction is required for 

Councillor Plant’s failure to declare an interest on the 11th August 

2015. 

7.2 In respect of our findings that Councillors have treated Mr. and 

Mrs. Harrison with disrespect and have improperly conferred a 

disadvantage on them we formally censure each Councillor 

concerned. 

7.3 We direct that a copy of this decision notice be appended to the 

minutes of the meeting. 

Page 8Page 18



 

 

7.4 We were pleased to note some acknowledgment from the Parish 

representatives that this matter has not been handled well. The 

Parish Council may consider it appropriate to issue an apology. 

 

 Cllr. C. Perrett  

Cllr. J. Hayes 

Cllr. M. Cannon 

 

 

Page 9Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 

 

  
 

   

 
Joint Standards Committee 9th November 2016 
 
Report of the Monitoring Officer 

 

Monitoring Report on Complaints Received 

Summary 

1. This report updates the Committee on current complaints. 

2. Since the Committee last met in August two complaints have been 
received, both of which relate to Parish Councillors.  One of these 
cases, on the worst interpretation, disclosed only a minor potential 
breach of the code and was not referred for investigation.  The 
Monitoring Officer is currently exploring whether the second may be 
suitable for informal resolution. 

3. At the last meeting Members were advised of four cases which 
were yet to be concluded. Of these: 

 One case was resolved by informal action following an investigation 

 One investigation resulting in a finding that the code had not been 
breached. Informal advice was though offered by the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 One hearing resulting in a finding that twelve Parish Councillors and 
one former Parish Councillor had breached their Council’s code of 
conduct 

 One investigator’s report is currently with the Deputy Monitoring 
Officer for consideration. 

4. Two cases are therefore currently active. 

  Recommendations 

5. Members are recommended to: 

1) Note the report  

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



 

Reason: To ensure that the Committee is aware of current levels 
of activity. 

 

 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 

Andrew Docherty 
Monitoring Officer 
Customer and Corporate 
Services Directorate 
Tel No. 01904 551004 
 
 

 

   
 

Report 
Approved 

√ Date 1/11/2016 

 
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All √ 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
None 
 

Page 22



 

 

  
 

   

 
Joint Standards Committee 9th November 2016 
 
Report of the Monitoring Officer 

 

Planning Panels 

1. Summary 

1.1 This report presents Members with information about the Planning 
Panels who act as consultees to planning applications in the non- 
parished central part of the Council’s area. 

2. Background 

2.1 Parish Councils are required by law to be consulted on planning 
applications in their area. For very many years the Council has 
operated a system in those parts of the City not covered by a 
Parish Council whereby a Panel is appointed through each Ward 
Committee to be consulted on applications within the Ward. A fact 
sheet providing more information about the role of panels is 
annexed to this report. 

2.2 The use of planning panels does give rise to some potential ethical 
standards issues. The potential exists for a planning panel member 
to comment on an application which directly affects him or her or 
those with whom he or she is closely associated.  That same 
potential exists, of course, where a parish council is consulted on 
an application.  However, parish councillors are subject to the 
standards regime under the Localism Act 2011 whereas planning 
panel members are not.  A parish councillor who commented on his 
or her own planning application would risk prosecution. 
Commenting on the application of a neighbour, friend or relative 
may be less likely to amount to an offence but would breach any 
properly drafted code of conduct and risk investigation by the Joint 
Standards Committee. Neither of these sanctions exists for a 
planning panel member. 

2.3 The fact sheet recognises the potential for conflicts of interest and 
says: 

Page 23 Agenda Item 7



 

 “Members of the panel shall declare any interest in a particular 
matter for noting prior to consideration of the relevant application” 

 Members of the Committee may have views as to whether they 
would wish to see this statement strengthened in any way. 

2.4 The Head of Communities and Equalities, whose team supports 
Ward Committees and the Planning Panels, has indicated that 
there is an intention to offer planning panel members training 
alongside  parish councillors on the planning system. There is an 
opportunity within that training to emphasise the need for 
consideration of conflicts of interest.  Again the Committee may 
wish to make recommendations in relation to that training. 

  Recommendations 

3. Members are recommended to: 

1) Discuss the ethical standards issues which may arise in the 
context of planning panels and offer such guidance as they 
consider appropriate. 

Reason: To support planning panel members in maintaining high 
ethical standards when advising the City Council. 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 

Andrew Docherty 
Monitoring Officer 
Customer and 
Corporate Services 
Tel No. 01904 
551004 

 
 

 

   
 

Report 
Approved 

√ Date 27/10/16 

 
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All √ 

 
 

Page 24



 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
None 
 
Annex 
 
Fact Sheet 12 - Ward Planning Panels  
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex  

 

 

Planning panels are made up of local volunteers (ward residents) who come together 
to discuss and respond to local planning applications. Planning Panels meet locally 
usually every 3 – 4 weeks depending on the level of local planning applications. 
Resident volunteers get involved out of an interest in the built environment and how 
their area looks and develops into the future. 
 
Membership  
 
Membership of a ward planning panel is through an open selection process at the 
Annual Residents Forum.  Planning Panels operate to a terms of reference document  
(see attached) which has recently been refreshed to encourage greater interaction with 
more ward residents and to reflect the use of electronic planning.  
 
Planning panels were established through ward committees to establish a coordinated 
resident response by ward to planning applications in order to give some sort of parity 
to parished areas who have the opportunity to coordinate a local response to planning 
applications through parish councils. However a key distinction is that parish councils 
are statutory consultees in terms of planning whereas planning panels are not.  
 
Planning panels exist where there is local interest and are connected and have a 
responsibility to report back to residents through residents’ forums. Resident members 
of the planning panels are ‘elected’ through residents’ forums. 

Administration 

Ward planning panels select one of their members to act as ‘clerk’ for the panel. The 
ward planning panel clerk is the first point of contact between City of York Council and 
the panel and coordinates panel meetings. 

Training and Support 

Support to the planning panels is through the Communities & Equalities Team e.g. 
access to training, room hire for meetings and out of pocket expenses for planning 
panel members. 
 
The amount of support needed by each panel is different, in some cases they meet in 
a local venue and in others they meet in their own houses e.g. Guildhall Planning 
Panel has recently started meeting in West Offices which offers them access to a free 

Fact Sheet 12 - Ward Planning Panels  
 
 
 

Page 27



Annex  

 

 

of charge meeting room and the relevant IT equipment to facilitate ease of group 
viewing of electronic plans. Planning panel members are often also members of the 
Open Planning Forum and through this independent forum can discuss ‘big picture 
issues’ with others including parish council representatives. 
 
Ward Planning Panels 
 
Currently there are Planning Panels operational in the following resident forum areas: 
 
Acomb 
Clifton 
Dringhouses & Woodthorpe 
Fishergate 
Guildhall 
Heworth 
Hull Road 
Micklegate 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward Planning Panels – Terms of Reference 

Page 28



Annex  

 

 

 
1. General Aims 

1.1 To scrutinise planning applications on behalf of local residents and to make 
appropriate comments and recommendations to the planning authority. 

 
1.2 To work in partnership with the local Residents Forum. 
 
1.3 To report activities of the Planning Panel to the local Residents Forum on at 

least two occasions each year. 
 
2. Membership 

2.1 Planning panel members should be residents of, or work in, the ward. However 
in recognition of the valued experience and contribution made by the longer 
serving planning panel members who do not currently meet this criteria, an 
exception will be made and they will be eligible to stand in the annual selection 
process. Any new members MUST be resident of, or work in, the ward. 

 
2.2 Planning panel members are confirmed at their local annual residents’ forum 

meeting. The names of those selected shall be published on the Council’s 
website following the meeting.  

 
2.3 Planning panel members are selected for a period of 12 months and existing 

members can re-stand for each 12 month period. 
 

2.4 The neighbourhood manager / community involvement officer will record 
membership details in the residents’ forum minutes following the selection of the 
planning panel. The planning panel clerk should notify the neighbourhood 
manager / community involvement officer of any potential new members during 
the following 12 months, at least one week prior to the next residents’ forum 
meeting. Selection of new members should then take place at the next annual 
residents’ forum meeting.  

 
2.5 Nominations for selection to the panel are to be submitted to the panel clerk at 

least one week prior to the residents’ forum. Nominations will be invited through 
ward newsletters annually. It is desirable that planning panel membership will 
include residents from across the ward to represent a cross section of views. 

 

Page 29



Annex  

 

 

2.6 There are no fixed limits on the numbers of members a panel can have. 
However, experience has shown that effective meetings are achieved with 
around 8 residents, so details of 12 residents may be a good number to keep, 
assuming not all will be able to attend each time. 
 

2.7  Members of the panel shall declare any interest in a particular matter for noting 
prior to consideration of the relevant application.  

 
3. Planning Panel Clerk/Secretary – ‘Job Description’ 

3.1 The planning panel clerk should be a resident of, or work in, the ward. However, 
in recognition of the valued experience and contribution made by the longer 
standing planning panel clerks that do not currently meet this criteria, an 
exception will be made until they choose to stand down. Any new clerks MUST 
be resident of, or work in, the ward. 
 

3.2 The planning panel clerk is selected by the planning panel members and is the 
point of contact for the members of the panel and officers of the planning 
department. This will involve: 

 
3.2.1 Receiving notification of planning applications, which may include plans, 

maps, drawings etc., these will be sent by the planning officer. 
 
3.2.2 Formulating a list of planning panel meeting dates and venues to be 

forewarned to the Communities & Equalities Team for publication on the 
Council’s website  

 
3.2.3 Working with the residents’ forum in terms of arranging special public 

meetings to obtain local resident views on more significant planning 
applications.  

 
3.2.4 Sending the notice of their meetings and views and comments of the panel 

relating to applications to the City and Environmental Services Directorate.   
 

3.2.5 Sending the notice of their meetings and copies of views and comments of 
the panel relating to applications to residents forum members and 
neighbourhood manager / community involvement officer unless otherwise 
requested.  

 

Page 30



Annex  

 

 

3.2.6 Receiving feedback on the success / failure of each planning application 
and reporting back to planning panel members. 

 
3.2.7 Arranging to report back to the residents’ forum on a twice per year basis. 
 
3.2.8 Submitting claims for reasonable out of pocket expenses (incurred as a 

result of participation on the panel) for the planning panel clerk or on 
behalf of panel members to the City of York Council. Receipts need to be 
submitted as evidence of expenditure. 

 
3.2.9 The planning panel clerk may also need to obtain further information from 

planning officers. 
 

4. Expenses procedure 
4.1 Expenses are paid for reasonable and legitimate expenses incurred by planning 

panel members in the course of their work for the planning panel. The basic 
principle is that members should not be out of pocket as a result of their 
participation in the planning panel. 
 

4.2 Claims forms should be completed by the claimant and handed to the clerk who 
will then pass on to the CYC contact address at point 5 

 
5. CYC Contact 

5.1 Queries related to Residents Forum Planning Panels should be directed to: 
 

City of York Council 
Communities and Equalities, West Offices, Station Rise, YO1 6GA 
Tel: 01904 551832 
Email:  shapingneighbourhoods@york.gov.uk 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Work Plan for Joint Standards Committee 2016-2017 
 

Meeting Date (3.00pm start) 
 

Items Notes 

Wednesday 3 August 2016   Appointment of Chair 

 Appointment of Vice-Chair 

 Monitoring report in respect of complaints 
received 

 Review of Complaints for the last municipal year 

 Feedback from meeting of North Yorkshire and 
York Standards Committees Chairs and 
Monitoring Officers 

Standard items for 1st meeting of 
municipal year 
Standard item 
 
Annual item 

Wednesday 14 September 2016  Monitoring report in respect of complaints 
received 

 Planning Panels 

 Request attendance of representative from 
Yorkshire Local Councils Associations  

Standard item 
 
 
As agreed at meeting of 3 August 
2016 

Wednesday 9 November 2016   Monitoring report in respect of complaints 
received 

Standard item 

Wednesday 1 February 2017   Monitoring report in respect of complaints 
received 

Standard item 

Wednesday 19 April 2017   Monitoring report in respect of complaints 
received 

Standard item 

 
Training and Development 
 
The committee has suggested that a training session be held on the following issue: 

 Ethical standards 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Sub-Committees
	Minutes
	 Minute Annex - Decision Notice

	5 Monitoring Report on Complaints Received
	7 Planning Panels
	Planning Panels Annex

	8 Review of Work Plan

